CITY OF GALT
MINUTES

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
m Council Chambers, 380 Civic Drive, Galt, California
Tuesday, April 7, 2009, 7:00 p.m.

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm by the mayor. Council Members present: Payne, Clare, Haines,
Meredith, Shelton.

Staff members present: Assistant City Manager Behrmann, City Clerk Aguire, Community Development
Director Campion, Public Works Director Halladay, City Attorney Rudolph, Chief of Police Cattolico,
Finance Director Kiriu, Human Resources Administrator Islas and Parks and Recreation Director Jeffries.
Absent: City Manager Anderson

OPENING CEREMONIES - Silent prayer was observed, the flag salute was recited and the video statement
was read by the city clerk.

AGENDA APPROVAL, ADDITIONS AND/OR DELETIONS — Meredith pulled items D-5 and D-6 for
discussion, moved up item I-1, and pulled item I-2 to another meeting. Shelton moved up items L-1 and L-2
to after presentations.

PUBLIC COMMENTS - The clerk announced that members of the audience could address the council on
any matter which is not on the agenda but within the subject matter jurisdiction. She advised the location of
the speaker sheets, asked that speaker sheets be presented to the clerk prior to addressing council and advised
that each person would have a five minute time limit to speak.

Carl Bonar encouraged the council to move forward with the approval of the General Plan and the EIR. He
also said they would continue to support an amendment to the sphere of influence to include that area referred
to as Delta Greens. He expressed a concern regarding the lack of a facility master plan and financing plan and
the need for such documents to address the future of the City. Bonar commented on the concentration of
growth and development in the east side and that a balanced growth between east and west sides of Galt was
needed.

John Slaughterback said the mayor was willing to listen. He thanked Haines for sticking to his guns
regarding the rates increases. He stated he approved of the delay on the issue to a regular meeting. He also
commented on the progress that had been made to the wastewater treatment plant upgrade. He asked why
there was not any reduction in City staff since the City was no longer growing due to the current economy.
Slaughterback also stated he was now indifferent to whether Delta Greens was to proceed or not. Meredith
responded stating that the City did not hire new employees based on temporary impact fees and did not
believe that the City was over-staffed.

Al Baldwin asked how much the Washington DC trip cost the taxpayers. Clare said his company paid for
most of the trip and he paid the rest. Haines and Meredith said the trip was approximately $1,700 for each of
them. Mr. Baldwin asked what good had come out of the trips. Meredith mentioned the discount prescription
program and the youth master plan. Clare reviewed the funds that the City had already been awarded and
fund requests that were submitted by Lungren for the Central Galt Interchange Project. These benefited the
City by more than $3M. Clare said it was the result of the efforts of City staff, the City lobbyist and council



GALT CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
REGULAR MEETING OF APRIL 7, 2009
PAGE 2

with personal contact with the representatives in Washington. Baldwin thanked the council for their response
and stated he had asked the question on behalf of others. Baldwin also asked about the WWTP oversight
committee and the need for it.

Dave Bramwell, citizen of Galt, stated he was there to support the approval the General Plan. He commented
on those that encouraged development on the east side of the City and discourage any development on the
west side in the area of Twin Cities Road. Bramwell also commented that the City should take control of its
future.

CONSENT CALENDAR - Consisting of Items 1 through 8, excluding items D-5 and D-6 which were pulled
for discussion.

1. SUBJECT: Minutes of special and regular council meetings of March 3, 2009 and special council
meetings of March 24, 2009.
RECOMMENDATION: That the city council accept the minutes as submitted.

2. SUBJECT: City of Galt Warrants.
RECOMMENDATION: That the city council approve the warrants as submitted.

3. SUBJECT: Proclamation recognizing Mosquito and West Nile Virus Awareness Week.
RECOMMENDATION: That the city council approve the proclamation as presented.

4. SUBJECT: Proclamation recognizing DMV/Donate Life California Month.
RECOMMENDATION: That the city council approve the proclamation as presented.

7. SUBJECT: Central Galt Interchange acquisition.
RECOMMENDATION: That the city council ratify the agreements for purchase of real property
based on previous direction given by council for: 1) APN 150-0082-015 — Jerry & Cheryl Wojke; 2)
APN 150-0233-007 — Frank & Christina Herrera; 3) APN 150-0233-004 — Michael Evans; and 4)
APN 150-0233-005 — Lisa Leonard, RGR Trust.

8. SUBJECT: Treasurer's Report for period ending February, 2009.
RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the city council accept the treasurer's report as submitted.

ACTION: Upon a motion by Meredith, seconded by Clare, the consent calendar was approved by a
unanimous vote.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM D-5

5. SUBJECT: Tertiary cloth filter equipment for the WWTP Upgrade Project — reject bid.
RECOMMENDATION: That the city council rejects the single tertiary cloth filter equipment bid
that was received from Krueger on March 12, 20009.

Halladay gave a staff report. Rudolph said the remaining issue with Kruger dealt with
indemnification covered by insurance and bonding by the contractor. Kruger had agreed to twice the
amount of the bid in insurance coverage. Rudolph said that through negotiations during the last
week, he felt they had reached a balance regarding risk to the City that was acceptable. Halladay



GALT CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
REGULAR MEETING OF APRIL 7, 2009
PAGE 3

commented that the bid amount submitted by Kruger did not include sales taxes which had been
requested as part of the bid document. He said the tax would be paid out the project funds in the
amount of approximately $74,000. He also commented that the delay by rejecting the bid would
jeopardize the time schedule for completion of the project. Based on staff recommendation regarding
the risk factor, no action was required by council.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM D-6

6.

SUBJECT: Galt Joint Union School District MOU — After School Program.
RECOMMENDATION: That the city council adopt Resolution No. 2009-26 approving: 1) the
MOU with the Galt Joint Union School District upon approval from the city attorney; and 2)
approving the appropriation of $45,389 as illustrated in the staff report.

Jeffries gave a staff report. He stated that it was only for the remainder of the school year.

ACTION: Upon a motion by Meredith, seconded by Clare, Resolution No. 2009-26 was approved by
a unanimous vote.

PRESENTATIONS: The mayor presented Gary Goodman, representative from the Sacramento-Yolo

Mosquito and Vector Control District, a proclamation recognizing Mosquito and West Nile Virus Awareness

Week.

CITY CLERK’S REPORT

1.

SUBJECT: Appointments to the Public Safety Committee.
RECOMMENDATION: Itis recommended that the council members review the letters of interest,
and if appropriate, each council member make an appointment to the public safety committee.

Aguire gave a staff report. The council appointments were as follows:

Shelton — Art Horton
Meredith — Lyle Lagge
Haines — Mike Singleton
Payne — James Magnuson
Clare — Fred Goethel

SUBJECT: Appointment to the Sacramento Yolo Mosquito & Vector Control District.
RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the city council consider and appoint a trustee to the
Sacramento Yolo Mosquito & Vector Control District to fill an unexpired term.

Aguire gave a staff report. Council appointed Fred Goethel.

CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE

1.

SUBJECT: Supplemental information regarding proposed Galt Public Service Unit (GPSU), non-
sworn mid-management, professional/confidential 2.5% cost of living adjustment (COLA) with
retroactive date of 1/1/20009.



GALT CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
REGULAR MEETING OF APRIL 7, 2009
PAGE 4

RECOMMENDATION: That the city council adopt Resolution No. 2009-30 and 2009-31
approving the proposed COLA for positions in the units of Galt Public Service Unit (GPUS), non-
sworn mid-management and professional/confidential.

Islas gave a staff report.

Frank Vivanco said most of the employees in the GPSU union were employees of the City of Galt
and paid the same living expenses within the city as everyone else. He said they were voters as well.
Haines said times were tough which was why he did not agree with raises in the current economy.
Clare gave some history and said the council needed to show good faith. Meredith agreed and said
the council needed to keep their commitment. Payne said she respected all the City’s employees and
said they were valuable.

ACTION: Upon a motion by Clare, seconded by Meredith, Resolutions No. 2009-30 and 2009-31
were adopted with Haines dissenting.

SCHEDULED MATTERS - PUBLIC HEARING

1.

SUBJECT: Expenditure of $7,346,722 of tax increment funds for public improvements and public
facilities related to the provision of fire protection and emergency medical services and adopting
findings required by Health and Safety Code sections 33445 and 33679.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the city council adopt Resolution No. 2009-27authorizing the
expenditure of $7,346,722 of tax increment funds for public improvements and public facilities of
benefit to the City of Galt and related to the provision of fire protection and emergency medical
services and adopting findings required by Health and Safety Code sections 33445 and 33679.

Rudolph gave a staff report. The mayor opened the public hearing.

Rick Walters asked if there were any administrative costs associated with the $7M. Rudolph stated
the total amount was for hard capital construction costs with no administrative costs with the release
of funds to the CSD concurrent with proof of the actual costs incurred

Hearing no further comment, the mayor closed the public hearing.

Haines asked if the CSD could borrow from this fund and then pay it back from another fund.
Rudolph indicated these were funds restricted to the capital facilities approved by the council and the
CSD. Meredith said he had received questions regarding a fire station on the west side of the City.
Behrmann indicated that the settlement agreement did not include a west side station but the list of
improvements could be modified in the future if the CSD recognized a need in the community.
Meredith recommended that the citizens attend the CSD meetings and voice their concerns regarding
a station on the west side. Payne stated the funds were coming from Redevelopment tax increment
and not from the general fund.

ACTION: Upon a motion by Meredith, seconded by Haines, Resolution No. 2009-27 was
unanimously adopted.



GALT CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
REGULAR MEETING OF APRIL 7, 2009
PAGE 5

2.

SUBJECT: 2030 Galt General Plan adoption and final environmental impact report certification
(SCH#2007082092).

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the city council adopt Resolution No. 2009-28 certifying the
final environmental impact report, adopting a mitigation monitoring and reporting program, adopting
and implementing the Galt General Plan 2030 policy document (with all the revisions noted in the
summary at the end of the staff report), and repealing the 1989-2005 Galt General Plan in its entirety
except for the 2002 Housing Element and Housing Element appendices.

Campion commented on the handouts distributed to council which consisted of the supplemental
recommendations, revisions and corrections coming from comments from: 1) Sacramento
Metropolitan Air Quality staff which addressed several typographic errors and a request on one of the
policies changing “should” to “shall”’; 2) CSD identifying typographic errors and they concurred with
the way the General Plan and EIR was written; and 3) a letter from property owners, the Beekmans,
indicating their approval of the documents as submitted. Campion also referred to a definition in the
glossary clarifying “coordinate” which would be added upon approval by council. Campion
indicated that staff had no objections to the corrections and amendments suggested. The last handout
was a hard copy of the presentation to be made by the consultants. Campion then thanked Principal
Planner Kiriu as project manager. He also thanked Jim Harnish and Dan Amsden of Mintier Harnish,
Ray Weiss of Environmental Science Associates and Marty Inouye of Omni-Means for all their work
on the plan.

Jim Harnish, Mintier Harnish, made a Power Point presentation which reviewed the process that led
to the documents before council for approval.

The mayor opened the public hearing.

Sean Wirth, Sierra Club and Save Our Sand Hill Crane representative, congratulated council on the
General Plan and agreed with the land use sections. He liked solar power and energy reductions in
general. He noted a few things that would make the plan better such as commitment for evaluating
smart growth and said the council should have used blue print tools. He said another issue was not
just about climate but about fuel prices, low land values and low interest rate. He said future fuel
prices probably would not re-emerge. Wirth commented on Impact 8.3-1 in the EIR which stated the
project would have substantial adverse effect on fish or wildlife species including endangered species
and the incorporation of a new policy, “Habitat Conservation Easement Coordination”. Wirth
suggested it would be better to look at land that was not protected by land trusts for potential conflicts
with development. He suggested a new policy that would involve working with the Department of
Fish and Game, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and the Sacramento Habitat Conservation Plan to
identify those lands where there might be a potential conflict with development. He felt this would
be a more pro-active approach.

Len ReidReynoso said he appreciated that the land designation for property to the north of the City
had remained agricultural. He also commented that notice of meetings regarding the General Plan
had not been received by some of the citizens to the north of City and they would not know about the
meetings until they were mentioned in the Galt Herald. He raised concerns about the circulation
pattern of Carillion Blvd. where it crossed Twin Cities Road and then curved back to Highway 99.
Since CalTrans would not allow another overpass that close to the Twin Cities Road overpass, he felt




GALT CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
REGULAR MEETING OF APRIL 7, 2009
PAGE 6

it was poor planning on the City’s part. Reynoso also commented that he felt it was money well
spent when council traveled and made contact with other cities and organizations that could provide
input and possible funding for projects within the City.

Steve Holman said the back line of his property would become commercial under the General Plan
and he said it did not make sense.

Rick Walters asked if the land use map in his possession was what was being considered for approval
and verified that it did not include property adjacent to the wastewater treatment plant. He also asked
if it would then go to LAFCo. Campion said it was the City’s document and would be used if the
City were to go to LAFCo with a request to expand the sphere of influence or annexation. Walters
also asked about the process of annexation. Campion stated either the City or a property owner could
approach LAFCo with an application for annexation and the cost would be the responsibility of the
applicant.

Jim Pachl said he was representing Friends of the Swainson’s Hawk. He said there was a failure to
require new development to mitigate for loss of farmland, failure to require mitigation for loss of
wildlife habitat and not allowing enough time for the public to review and respond to the final EIR.

Brent Steele said he liked the General Plan except for the area of Carillion, up Twin Cities, curving
around. He said it should be from McKenzie at least to Arno to control the property and the overpass
on Arno.

Hearing no further comments, the mayor closed the public hearing. Payne asked about the
Sacramento Habitat Conservation Plan and its use by the City. Campion stated the plan would not be
finalized until later in the year and would be a tool available to the City at that time. Payne asked
about the circulation plan which included an extension of Carillion Blvd. to the north. Marty Inouye
and Jim Harnish explained the need for including Carillion Blvd. and why the circulation did not
extend up to Arno Road. Clare commented on the history of the update. He commended the staff for
the outreach that was involved in the development of the update. Clare said there was a need for a
financing study on the update. Clare commented on a meeting scheduled for the following day with
staff, council, state and county staff to discuss the Twin Cities overpass. He also commented on the
sphere of influence and the need for control by the City of the area north of Twin Cities Road.
Haines and Meredith indicated their support of the update. Meredith thanked the entire council for
their compromise. Shelton thanked the citizens that had followed the development of the document
over the years and indicated that this was a living document that would be amended as needed.

ACTION: Upon a motion by Clare, seconded by Meredith, Resolution No. 2009-28 and the
corrections and amendments indicated above were approved by a unanimous vote.

3. SUBJECT: Revised utility services rates (continued from the meeting of February 17, 2009).
RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the city council: 1) continue the public hearing from February
17, 2009; 2) tabulate any written protests; 3) in absence of a majority protest, adopt Resolution No.
2009-29 approving the revised rate schedules for water, wastewater, and storm water (Tier 2) to be
effective May 1, 2009; and 4) approve combining Funds 007 and 015.




GALT CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
REGULAR MEETING OF APRIL 7, 2009
PAGE 7

Halladay gave a staff report. The mayor opened the public hearing.

John Slaughterback said it was not fair for a person in a mobile home to pay the same rate as a four
bedroom home with a swimming pool. He said phase two water meter implementation needed to be
done. He also wanted to tie water usage with sewer usage. He said impact fees on home
development should be increased as well.

Dan Jimenez indicated that he did not support the rate increase. He understood that City staff was to
review and bring back changes to the rate increases and he saw no changes from the presentation in
February.

Al Baldwin said the increase would especially hurt the seniors and suggested having a 2.0% increase.

Rick Walters asked how long the increases would continue and said there needed to be a meaningful
solution. He asked council to come up with a plan.

Tracy Gross asked that the issue be postponed for a month so they could collect signatures of people
that were against the increases. She asked for council consideration. Hearing no additional
comments, the mayor closed the public hearing.

Clare said he did not like the increases but there was a cost of doing business. He said it was not
popular but was the right thing. Meredith asked about unexpected costs for utility rates. Halladay
said the State of California fining the City, the arsenic costs, etc. Meredith said it was easy to assume
the increases resulted from an increase in wages, but the fines and additional mandates were putting
cities in difficult situations regarding rates. He said he had reservations using the CPI for rate
increases but said some type of rate increase was justified. He said he would be comfortable in
raising rates 3% aside from solid waste. Payne agreed and said she would like to consider a 2%
increase and revisit the issue in one year.

Meredith indicated that the budget amounts were based on a 3% increase and asked where the
additional funds would come from if the increase was reduced to 2%. Clare asked about the
ramifications of a 2% increase and said rather than waiting a year to revisit the issue, it should be
brought back in six months for review. Halladay indicated that there would an opportunity to review
the rates in October or November when staff brought the first phase of water meter installation to
council. He also projected the effects of a reduction on fund balances in 09/10 fiscal year. Clare
asked about the value of the last fine paid by the City and Halladay said $108,000. Behrmann stated
that due to the delay in addressing the rate increase there was already a decrease in revenue. Kiriu
reviewed the loss of revenue due to non-payment of utility bills due to foreclosures. Meredith asked
Halladay to describe the effects to the rate payers if the fund accounts were in the deficit. Halladay
said the first thing would be the discontinuance of capital improvements, not repairing or replacing
old equipment, not repairing streets, and discontinuing street sweeping to name a few.

The mayor re-opened the public hearing.

Gloria Rodriguez asked if people were walking away from their homes, was that the reason for the
increase. Hearing no further comments, the mayor closed the public hearing.




GALT CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
REGULAR MEETING OF APRIL 7, 2009
PAGE 8

Kiriu said the increase did not include bad debt expenses up to this point. She said in the future, the
delinquencies could be spread amongst the ratepayers.

Haines said he did not want to increase the rates at all. He said people could hardly buy food and
could not afford a utility rate increase. He said the city needed to look for an alternative and added
that there should be no increases next year. Meredith said it was the popular argument but
irresponsible.

ACTION: A motion by Clare approving the 4.1% increase died for a lack of a second.
ACTION: Upon a motion by Meredith, seconded by Clare, across the board 3.0% increase, effective
May 1, 2009 (Resolution No. 2009-29) and combining Funds 007 and 015was approved with Payne

and Haines dissenting.

REGULAR CALENDAR

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

2. SUBJECT: Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade Citizen Oversight Committee.
RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the city council provide direction and/or take action as deemed
appropriate in regard to the Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade Citizen Oversight Committee.

This item was pulled.

ACTION: Upon a motion by Clare, seconded by Meredith, continuing the meeting past 11:00 p.m. was
approved by a unanimous vote.

3. SUBJECT: Award of bid for the construction of Effluent Pipeline Project at the City’s wastewater
treatment plant.
RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the city council: 1) adopt Resolution No. 2009-32 approving
the CEQA mitigated negative declaration and mitigation monitoring and reporting program for the
Wastewater Treatment Plant Effluent Pipeline Project (SCH #2008102001; 2) adopt Resolution No.
2009-33 authorizing the city manager to award a contract to construct the Wastewater Treatment
Plant Effluent Pipeline Project to Sanco Pipelines, in the amount of $697,210; 3) authorize the
director of public works to award a task order change authorization for construction support services
to West Yost Associates, in the amount of $60,770; and 4) authorize the director of public works to
accept the improvements and issue the notice of completion, upon completion of the improvements.

Halladay gave a staff report.

ACTION: Upon a motion by Meredith, seconded by Clare, all staff recommendations were approved
including Resolution No. 2009-32 and 2009-33. Absent: Haines.

Clare encourage staff to pursue the purchase of the property the outflow crosses.

ADJOURN AND RECONVENE TO THE GALT CITY COUNCIL.




GALT CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
REGULAR MEETING OF APRIL 7, 2009
PAGE 9

COMMENTS BY CITY CLERK Aguire review the upcoming meetings and events and encourage the
citizens to take advantage of the Shred It event to be held on April 25",

COMMENTS BY STAFF: Halladay gave an update on the railroad crossing improvements being done in
the Galt area.

COMMENTS BY COUNCIL

VICE MAYOR PAYNE said she had attended a party for Lizzie Keller on her 100™ birthday. She
commented on the improvements being done at the old Shop n” Shop.

COUNCIL MEMBER CLARE thanked staff and Lungren’s office for funding received. Clare stated as
Vice Chair he had hosted a dinner for the Secretary of the Army Corps of Engineering. Aguire stated
Kiwanis had celebrated the first anniversary of the Monterey Bark Park the previous weekend.

COUNCIL MEMBER HAINES:

1. SUBJECT: Police Report — February, 2009. Haines reviewed the report. He also attended the 2009
T-ball grand opening, and said Meredith and himself passed out prescription discount cards last
weekend.

COUNCIL MEMBER MEREDITH told everyone the Brewster Building looked amazing and said they
were also taking down the Guthmiller building. He said he was at the instructional baseball opening

ceremonies. He said they delivered 225 prescription discount cards last weekend. He talked about the Cantu
child that was murdered in Tracy and told everyone to watch their children and lock their doors at night.

MAYOR SHELTON: Shelton thanked staff and the public for getting through the meeting respectfully.

There being no further business to come before council, the meeting was adjourned by the mayor at 10:53
p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Elizabeth Aguire
City Clerk



